
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

December 06, 2021 

8:30 AM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  December 06, 2021 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Organizational Meeting 

December 06, 2021 

8:30 AM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Pastor Joe Brock - Harmony Baptist Church 

ITEM I. Consideration of the Agenda 

ITEM II. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM III. Election of Chairman to the Board - John Morrison 

ITEM IV. Election of Vice Chairman to the Board 

ITEM V. Bond Approval 

A. Approval of Bonds 

ITEM VI. 2022 Board of Commissioners Meeting Calendar 

A. 2022 Regular Meeting Calendar 

ITEM VII. 2022 State Holiday Schedule 

A. 2022 State Holiday Schedule 

ITEM VIII. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  December 06, 2021 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM IX. Public Hearings 

A. Sandy Hook Rezoning - Amber Curling 

B. UDO Text Amendment - Amber Curling 

ITEM X. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board 

ITEM XI. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report 

B. Resolution Supporting Individual Freedom Over Personal Vaccination Status 

C. Agreement to Amend Restrictive Covenants (Camden Business Park) - John Morrison 

ITEM XII. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. South Camden Fire Commission 

B. Advisory Board Commissioner Appointments 

ITEM XIII. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - November 1, 2021 

B. Budget Amendments 

C. School Budget Amendments 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

E. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

F. Tax Collection Report 

G. Refunds Over $100.00 

H. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

I. Recycling & Disposal Contract Renewal 

J. JCPC Contractor Agreement 

ITEM XIV. County Manager's Report 

ITEM XV. Commissioners' Reports 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  December 06, 2021 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

ITEM XVI. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

ITEM XVII. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM XVIII. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Other Matters 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Bond Approval 

 

Attachments: Bonds_120621 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Bond approval for the following: 

Board of Commissioners - County of Camden 

Finance Officer - County of Camden 

Finance Officer - Camden Tourism Development Authority 

Finance Officer - Courthouse/Shiloh Fire Commission 

Finance Officer - South Mills Fire Commission 

Finance Officer - Joyce Creek Drainage District 

Finance Officer - South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Register of Deeds - County of Camden 

Sheriff - County of Camden 

Tax Assessor & Collector - County of Camden 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 5



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s_

12
06

21
  (

31
64

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

B
o

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Other Matters 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   2022 Regular Meeting Calendar 

 

Attachments: 2022 Regular Meeting Schedule (DOCX) 

 

6.A

Packet Pg. 16



 

 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

2022 Regular Meeting Calendar  

 

 
MEETING DATE / TIME        AGENDA ITEMS DEADLINE 

  
Monday, January 3, 2022   7:00 PM     Monday, December 20, 2021  12:00 PM 

 Monday, February 7, 2022  7:00 PM     Tuesday, February 1, 2022  12:00 PM 

 Monday, March 7, 2022   7:00 PM     Tuesday, March 1, 2022   12:00 PM 

 Monday, April 4, 2022   7:00 PM     Tuesday, March 29, 2022   12:00 PM 

 Monday, May 2, 2022    7:00 PM     Tuesday, April 26, 2022   12:00 PM 

 Monday, June 6, 2022    7:00 PM     Tuesday, May 31, 2022   12:00 PM 

 Tuesday, July 5, 2022    7:00 PM     Tuesday, June 28, 2022   12:00 PM 

Monday, August 1, 2022   7:00 PM     Tuesday, July 26, 2022   12:00 PM 

 Tuesday, September 6, 2022  7:00 PM     Tuesday, August 30, 2022  12:00 PM 

 Monday, October 3, 2022   7:00 PM     Tuesday, September 27, 2022  12:00 PM 

 Monday, November 7, 2022  7:00 PM     Tuesday, November 1, 2022  12:00 PM 

 Monday, December 5, 2022  8:30 AM     Tuesday, November 29, 2022  12:00 PM 
      (Swearing-In of Newly Elected Officials and Organizational Meeting) 
 

       
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All regular meetings are held in the Historic Courtroom located at 

117 North 343 

Camden County, North Carolina  

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2 

R
eg

u
la

r 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 S
ch

ed
u

le
  (

31
52

 :
 2

02
2 

R
eg

u
la

r 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 C
al

en
d

ar
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Other Matters 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   2022 State Holiday Schedule 

 

Attachments: 2022-Holiday-Schedule (PDF) 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 18



2022 Holiday Schedule

 

Holiday Observance Date Day of Week

New Year’s Day December 31, 2021 Friday

Martin Luther King, Jr.
Birthday January 17, 2022 Monday

Good Friday April 15, 2022 Friday

Memorial Day May 30, 2022 Monday

Independence Day July 4, 2022 Monday

Labor Day September 5, 2022 Monday

Veterans Day November 11, 2022 Friday

Thanksgiving November 24 & 25, 2022 Thursday & Friday

Christmas December 23, 26 & 27,
2022

Friday, Monday &
Tuesday

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

H
o

lid
ay

-S
ch

ed
u

le
  (

31
51

 :
 2

02
2 

S
ta

te
 H

o
lid

ay
 S

ch
ed

u
le

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 9.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Sandy Hook Rezoning 

 

Attachments: 1AgendaSummary_SandyHookRezoning2021December06

 (DOCX) 

2StaffReportSandyHookRezoningDecember6_2021

 (DOCX) 

3Sandy Hook application (PDF) 

4ComparisionVCtoNR (PDF) 

5Neighborhood Meeting Summary (DOCX) 

Ordinance for Ricky Edwards Rezoning Deember6_2021

 (DOCX) 

ResolutionOrdinanceSandyHookRezoning (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

9.A

Packet Pg. 20



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   December 6, 2021 

 

Attachments:   Sandy Hook Rezoning Findings 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Request for Zoning Map Amendment from Ricky Lee Edwards 

 

 

Summary: 

 

Ricky Lee Edwards has requested a map amendment for 4 parcels of approximately 4.5 acres from 

Village Commercial (VC) and 37 acres to Neighborhood Residential (SR).  All parcels are located off 

Sandy Hook Rd in the Shiloh Township.   

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on October 5, 2021.  On October 20, 2021 the Planning Board 

approved the rezoning request with a 4-0 vote. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Map.  The CAMA Future 

Land Use Maps has the majority of property identified as Crossroads Commercial. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map 

which shows the current Village Commercial Zoning Parcels to be Community Core. 

 

 

Recommendation:   

 

Motion to approve Consistency Statement: 

 

The requested zoning change is inconsistent with 2035 Comprehensive Future Land Use Maps that 

reflect allowing higher density residential development in targeted areas of the County.   The requested 

zoning change is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan which identifies the majority 

of the property as Crossroads Commercial. 

 

If rezoning is approved CAMA requires an approval of a Resolution to the CAMA Future Land Use 

Map. 

 

Motion to approve: 

 

Motion to approve the Ordinance 2021-12-01 and Zoning Map Amendment UDO 2021-10-12 for the 

rezoning of the four parcels of property, approximately 4 acres total from Village Commercial (VC) to 

Neighborhood Residential (NR); and to approve the resolution amending CAMA Future Land Use Map. 

 

Reasonableness Statement for approval:   

The requested zoning change is consistent with the current land use of the 4 parcels as well as the 

majority of the surrounding land uses. 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

S
an

d
yH

o
o

kR
ez

o
n

in
g

20
21

D
ec

em
b

er
06

  (
31

59
 :

 S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



Motion for denial: 

 

Motion to deny the Ordinance 2021-12-01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2021-10-12) for the rezoning of 

the four parcels of property, approximately 4 acres total from Village Commercial (VC) to 

Neighborhood Residential (NR). 

 

Reasonableness Statement for denial: 

 

The requested zoning change is inconsistent with 2035 Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan which 

identifies the area as Crossroads Commercial.  The requested zoning change is inconsistent with the 

CAMA Future Land Use Plan which identifies the property as Community Core. 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

S
an

d
yH

o
o

kR
ez

o
n

in
g

20
21

D
ec

em
b

er
06

  (
31

59
 :

 S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



` 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Ordinance 2021-12-01 

UDO 2021-10-012 

 Zoning Map Amendment  
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

 

File Reference: UDO 2021-10-012 

Project Name:           Rezoning on Sandy Hook Rd 

PIN:    Various  

    

 

Applicant:               Ricky Lee Edwards  

Address:  226 Milltown Rd 

 Shiloh, NC 27974  

 

Phone:  252-331-7564 

Email:  NA 

 

Agent for Applicant:  NA  

Address:  

           

Phone:    

Fax:   

Email:     

 

Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 

 

Meeting Dates: 

October 5, 2021 Neighborhood Meeting 

October 20, 2021 Planning Board Meeting   

 Application Received: October 6, 2021 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $650.00  

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed 

C. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 

D. Zoning Comparison VC to NR 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUEST:  Zoning Map Amendment from Village Commercial Zoning District to Neighborhood 

Residential Zoning District.   

  

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

DESCRIPTION: Rezone of four parcels; first parcel 03-8973-00-22-4200.0000 of approximately 1.33 

acres, second parcel 901 Sandy Hook Rd 03-8973-00-22-6302.0000, third parcel 903 Sandy Hook Rd 

03-8973-00-22-6159.0000 and fourth parcel PIN 905 Sandy Hook Rd 03-8973-00-22-6088.0000 from 

Village Commercial (VC) to Neighborhood Residential (NR).  The parcels are located in the Shiloh 

Township on Sandy Hook Road.   The property has been used as farmland and residential homes 

 

Rezoning from the Village Commercial Zoning District (Article 151.3.6.3) 

The Village Commercial district intended to foster high quality, compact, pedestrian-oriented 

development on lots within designated village centers. Development in the VC district is human-scaled 

and designed to promote visual interest for pedestrians. Ground-level retail and personal services that 

promote pedestrian activity along the street are highly encouraged and large, monolithic, automobile-

oriented developments are prohibited. New development in the district is located close to the street, 

provides passers-by with clear views into the building’s ground floor, and fosters sidewalk dining, 

outdoor seating, and interaction among pedestrians. The district requires urban-style open space (greens, 

seating areas, plazas, pocket parks, roof gardens, etc.) to be included as a part of new development. In 

addition to commercial uses, the district allows a variety of moderate-density residential development. 

New commercial, mixed-use, and multi-family developments in the district are subject to the design 

standards in ARTICLE 151.5 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 

 

Rezoning to the Neighborhood Residential Zoning District (Article 151.3.5.5) 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) district serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban 

portions of the County to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors. The district 

is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a neighborhood setting at moderate 

densities. Mobile and manufactured homes on individual lots, conservation subdivisions, and 

agricultural uses are limited in order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character. Manufactured 

homes are not allowed on lots within 5,280 linear feet of a village center boundary. The district’s 

40,000-square-foot minimum lot area may be reduced when lots are within one mile of a designated 

village center boundary and served by public sewer. District regulations discourage uses that interfere 

with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are detrimental to the district’s single-family 

detached neighborhood character.  

 

SITE DATA 
Size of Lots:   The 4 lots are between 40,000 -59,000 square feet                          

Flood Zone:   X 

Zoning District(s):  Village Commercial (VC) 

Existing Land Uses:  Farmland Residential Lots 

Proposed Use(s) –   Residential 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Village Commercial 

(VC) &  

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Village Commercial 

(VC) 

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Village 

Commercial 

(VC) 

Use & size Residential Lots & 

Farmland 

Residential Lots, 

Woods, Farmland 

Farmland Business & 

Farmland 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

MAPS for Clarification 

Vicinity Map:  Shiloh Township – Located on Sandy Hook Rd. 

 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

Zoning Map: 

 
  

Neighborhood 

Residential 

Village 

Commercial 

Working Lands 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

CAMA Land Suitability: 

 

Very High in 

Land Suitability 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

Watershed, Wetlands, and Floodplain Map

 

No Watershed 

No Wetlands 

No Floodplain 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map  

  
  

Rural 

Preservation 

Rural Residential 

1-2 acres 

Crossroads 

Commercial 

Village Residential Village 

Residential 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 
 

Medium Density 

Residential 

Low Density 

Residential On 1 

acre or greater 

 

Conservation 

Medium Density 

Residential 

Community 

Core 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Water lines are located adjacent to property along Sandy Hook Road 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  Shiloh Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning should not have an impact on Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning should not have impact on Traffic 

 
 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS THE PLANNING BOARD TO CONSIDER:  

1. Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?  

In Camden County 0.26% is zoned as Village Commercial and 3.08% is zoned as Neighborhood Residential.  

2. Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses?  

The surrounding properties are mainly residential homes and farmland. 

3. Is the entire range of permitted uses in the requested classification more appropriate than the range 

of uses in the existing classification?  

Three of the parcels are being used as residential and the fourth parcel is being used as farmland.  The 

surrounding properties are mainly residential.  The proposed uses of the four parcels are residential.  The 

difference is between the existing Commercial zoning district and the proposed Residential zoning district. 

4. Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water services, 

other utilities?  

The proposed zoning uses should not impact public facilities. Three of the 4 properties have water meters 

currently. 

5. Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire protection 

or the school system?  

The proposed zoning uses should not have an impact on any public services.  

6. Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will result, as proposed, will result in 

lessening the enjoyment or use of adjacent properties?  

All permitted uses in the requested zoning classification should not lessen the enjoyment or use of any 

adjacent properties.  

7. Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual disturbances?  

All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, odors, light 

activity, or unusual disturbances.  

9. Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of precedents, 

or need for this type of use?  

The request does not raise serious legal questions. 

10. Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern?  

The proposed development includes no areas of environmental concern.  
   

  

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



` 

Goal when Reviewing of Zoning Regulations in accordance with the Camden County Land Use 

Plans is to make sure the project is designed to: 

• to lessen congestion in the streets;  

• to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 

• to promote health and the general welfare; 

• to provide adequate light and air;  

• to prevent the overcrowding of land; 

• to avoid undue concentration of population; and  

• to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewage, schools’ parks and other 

public requirements 

 

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS  

•  

• CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

•  Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

• The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on 

April 4, 2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use 

Maps has the property identified as Community Core.  The Plan shows the current Village 

Commercial Zoning District Parcels to be designed to provide the core commercial use in the 

County’s three villages to help meet social, shopping, employment, and some housing needs of 

the County’s rural residents in a village-type environment. 

 

• 2035 Comprehensive Plan 

•  Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

• The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the County’s 2035 Comprehensive 

Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) which shows the parcel to be Crossroads Commercial.  

The Crossroads Commercial. District is intended to provide commercial uses that serve 

proximate rural residences.  Crossroads Commercial is not typically designed in a master 

planned fashion, but as singular smaller shops and stores that provide basic goods and services. 

•  

• Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

•  Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

•  Property abuts Sandy Hook Rd 

•  

•  Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners -  

N/A 

 

 

Recommendations 

The Planning Board on October 20 voted unanimously to approve the Rezoning Application. 

 

Planning Staff supports the Planning Board recommendation for the approval of the Rezoning 

Application Ordinance 2021-12-01 (UDO 2021-10-12) of the Sandy Hook Rd parcels from Village 

Commercial to Neighborhood Residential.   

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
D

ec
em

b
er

6_
20

21
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
31

59
 :

 S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
31

59
 :

 S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



9.A.d

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

C
o

m
p

ar
is

io
n

V
C

to
N

R
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



October 5, 2021 

Neighborhood Meeting for the Rezoning on Sandy Hook Rd 

Amber Curling (Camden Planning) Gail Burgess, AB Burgess (Neighbors) and Ricky Edwards (Owner) 

attended the meeting.  Mr. Jim Wilkins did not attend however he called in comments on the phone.  

None of the neighbors have any problem with the rezoning application from Village Commercial to 

Neighborhood Residential.   

All of the neighbors support the rezoning.  The discussion and concern from the neighbors was the 

zoning change which created a commercial zoning district.  The neighbors stated possible getting 

together and submitting a rezoning application for their properties.  Also, concern was expressed over 

the higher commercial tax rate.  Although it does not seem extreme,  after several years paying the 

higher rate and being retired it creates a burden on them. 

9.A.e

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-12-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County 

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, 

which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 1993 and revised 

February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended. 

 

Article II: Amendment to Zoning Map 

 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted 

on December 20, 1993, and revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, 

is hereby amended as follows: 

 

The properties currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor's Office as PIN 

numbers: 

• 03-8973-00-22-6302-0000 (1.35 Acres) 

• 03-8973-00-22-6159-0000 (0.92 Acres) 

• 03-8973-00-22-6088-0000 (0.92 Acres) 

• 03-8973-00-22-4200-0000 (1.33 Acres) 

of approximately 4.52 acres from Village Commercial (VC) to Neighborhood Residential 

(NR). 

 

Article III: Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its 

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established in 

connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, shall 

constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) dollars or a 

maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to comply 

with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards 

established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use 

Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of one-hundred ($100) dollars 

for each day the violation continues. If the offender fails to pay the penalty within ten 

(10) days after being cited for a violation, the penalty may be recovered by the county in 

a civil action in the nature of debt. A civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of 

Adjustment if the offender was sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 

151.9.8.1 Civil Penalties and did not take an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within 

the prescribed time. 

9.A.f

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
R

ic
ky

 E
d

w
ar

d
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 D
ee

m
b

er
6_

20
21

  (
31

59
 :

 S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that such 

violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the penalties and 

remedies specified in this section. 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be used to 

enforce this Ordinance. 

 

Article IV: Severability 

 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or 

other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language held to be invalid shall 

be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

Article V: Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 6th day of December, 

2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

9.A.f

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
R

ic
ky

 E
d

w
ar

d
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 D
ee

m
b

er
6_

20
21

  (
31

59
 :

 S
an

d
y 

H
o

o
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-12-01 

 

AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE COASTAL AREA MANAGEMENT AGENCY CORE 

LAND USE PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, the County desires to amend its 2005 CAMA Core Land Use Plan, specifically the Future 

Land Use Map, to designate approximately 4.5 acres of the Future Land Use Map from Community Core, to 4.5 

acres to Medium Density Residential to accommodate a rezoning request from Ricky Lee Edwards; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2021the Planning Board unanimously recommended rezoning and related 

adoption of the draft amendment to the CAMA Core Land Use Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County conducted a duly advertised public hearing on the draft amendment to the 

CAMA Core Land Use Plan at the Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners on December 6, 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the amendment to the Future Land Use Map has been evaluated for its consistency with 

other existing policies and no internal inconsistencies exit; and  

 

WHEREAS, the amendment is consistent with the currently approved North Carolina Coastal 

Management Program and the rules of the Coastal Resources Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, a review of the Implementation Policies indicates that this project and request is consistent 

with 18 of the Land Use Policies; and 

 

WHEREAS, the amendment does not violate any state or federal laws. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of Camden County, 

North Carolina, has adopted the draft CAMA Core Land Use Plan amendment to amend its 2005 CAMA Core 

Land Use Plan, specifically the Future Land Use Map, to designate approximately 4.5 acres of the Future Land 

Use Map from Community Core to Medium Density Residential; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Manager of Camden County is hereby authorized to 

submit the adopted CAMA Core Land Use Plan amendment to the State for certification as described above. 

 

Adopted this _____ day of _______________ 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

9.A.g

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

O
rd

in
an

ce
S

an
d

yH
o

o
kR

ez
o

n
in

g
  (

31
59

 :
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 9.B 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   UDO Text Amendment 

 

Attachments: 2021December6_AgendaSummary_FeeTextAmendment

 (DOCX) 

NCGS 162A-213 (PDF) 

Updated2021-12-02 Ordinance for Time of Collection of 

Utility Fees (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

9.B

Packet Pg. 54



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   December 6, 2021 

 

Attachments:   Text Amendment 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Text Amendment to Update Unified Development Ordinance 

 

Summary: 

 

The attached proposed ordinance presents a text change to the Camden County Unified Development 

Ordinance (151.6.2.7.B.a.2).  The change is necessary to comply with state law. 

 

In January 2021, the General Assembly approved changes to the North Carolina General Statutes section 

162A-213 (a) (1) that modified when public utilities can collect capacity and tap fees.  The previous 

version allowed the collection of these fees at the time a subdivision was platted.  This placed the burden 

on the developer to pay the fees. 

 

The new version adopted January 1, 2021 states that the fees are not to be collected until the building 

permit is drawn. 

 

The Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

o Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2021-12-02 for the following reasons: 

The proposed text amendment does not result from any events affecting land use and 

development patterns so it is neither consistent nor inconsistent with plan content; merely 

a legislative mandate to remain valid in the County’s exercise of authority to set such 

standards & specifications. 

The proposed amendment is supportive of the Plan’s purposes: 

• establish the legal foundation for zoning and subdivision changes  

• guide future land-use decisions  

• provide a legal foundation for future land-use related regulations 

 

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1D

ec
em

b
er

6_
A

g
en

d
aS

u
m

m
ar

y_
F

ee
T

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
t 

 (
31

60
 :

 U
D

O
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



9.B.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
G

S
 1

62
A

-2
13

  (
31

60
 :

 U
D

O
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-12-02 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County Unified Development Ordinance 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 

follows: 

 

Article I:  Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 

Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 

Commissioners on January 1, 1998, and subsequently revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently 

amended, and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden County Code. 

 

Article II:  Construction 

 

For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as additions to 

existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be considered 

deletions to existing language. New language of proposed ordinance shall be shown in italics, 

underlined, and highlighted (italics). 

 

Article III:  Amend Article 151 as amended of the Camden County Unified Development 

Ordinance, specifically 151.6.2.7.B.1.a.2, which shall read as follows: 

 

151.6.2.7.B.1.a.2 Potable Water Systems 

B.  Connection to County Water Supply System 

1. Major Subdivisions 

a. Procedure 
2. All water system connection fees shall be paid by the developer for each lot 

required to be connected to the County water system, prior to the submission 
of final approval at the time of application for a building permit. 

 

Article IV: Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 6th day of December, 

2021. 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

9.B.c

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

p
d

at
ed

20
21

-1
2-

02
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
T

im
e 

o
f 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 o
f 

U
ti

lit
y 

F
ee

s 
 (

31
60

 :
 U

D
O

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Other Matters 

 

Item Number: 10.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board 

 

Attachments: Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board

 (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

At the November 1, 2021 meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Sheriff Kevin Jones 

addressed the Board in regard to establishing a Vicious or Dangerous Dog Panel / Appeals Board 

per General Statute 67-4.1 Subsection C.  The Board unanimously voted to consider this matter 

at the December 6th meeting.  Attached is a draft for insertion into the current Animal Ordinance 

for review and consideration.   

10.A

Packet Pg. 58



ARTICLE VI. - DANGEROUS AND POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS DOGS 

Section 1. Compliance with state law; article as supplement to state law. 

It is the purpose of this Ordinance to supplement state laws for the enforcement of state 

laws relating to Dangerous dogs and Potentially Dangerous dogs. 

Section 2. Declaration of Dangerous or Potentially Dangerous Dog 

a.            The Animal Control Officer may find and declare a Dog Dangerous or 

Potentially Dangerous if probable cause is found to believe that the dog falls within 

the definitions set forth in this ordinance. The finding must be based upon one or 

more of the following: 

1.           The written and signed complaint of a citizen, who is willing to testify 

that the dog has acted in a manner that is defined as a Dangerous Dog or 

Potentially Dangerous Dog. 

2.           Authenticated dog bite reports filed with the Animal Control 

Department; 

3.           Actions of the dog witnessed and reported upon by any Animal 

Control Officer or Law Enforcement Officer; 

4.           The declaration by a judicial authority or another animal control 

authority pursuant to G.S. § 67.1 

5.           Other credible evidence. 

 

Section 3. Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board. 

a.            There is hereby created a Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board to hear 

appeals of determinations of Potentially Dangerous dogs. 

b.           The Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board is voluntary and shall be 

composed of five regular members and two alternates. All the members and the 

alternates shall be residents of Camden County and appointed by the Camden 

County Board of Commissioners to serve a three-year term. At least one of the 

regular members shall be a licensed veterinarian, if available, one a livestock owner, 

one a sworn law enforcement officer and two or three members representing the 

public at large . 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
D

o
g

 A
p

p
ea

ls
 B

o
ar

d
  (

31
69

 :
 P

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
D

o
g

 A
p

p
ea

ls
 B

o
ar

d
)



c.            At any hearing, an officer of the Sheriff’s Office shall be assigned to take 

minutes, of which shall be considered a matter of public record and the Animal 

Control Department shall be the custodian thereof. 

d.           A quorum of at least three members (any combination of regular members 

and  alternates) must be present at an appellate board hearing in order for the 

Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board to conduct business. 

e.            The members of the Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board shall disclose any 

personal involvement they have had with the case to be heard, the individuals  involved or 

other conflicts of interest, and upon a motion of the Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals 

Board, be recused for the hearing at hand. 

Section 4. Right to Appeal 

a.            The owner of a dog which has been declared Potentially Dangerous has the 

right to appeal the declaration to the Dangerous or Potentially Dangerous Dog 

Appeals Board. 

1.           The owner of a dog which has been declared Potentially Dangerous 

has the right to appeal the declaration by filing a written objection, stating 

the grounds for the appeal, with the Animal Control Department within seven 

business days of receipt of the declaration letter. 

2.           After declaration that a dog is Dangerous or Potentially Dangerous 

and during any part of the appeals process, the owner or keeper of the dog 

shall adequately confine the dog. 

3.           The Appeals Board shall hold a hearing within ten business days of 

the receipt of the written objections. 

4.           The Animal Control Officer shall have the burden of proof and may 

request witnesses be present and introduce evidence.  

5.           The owner requesting the appeal will be given an opportunity to 

disprove the element(s) which constitute the declaration. 

6.           The Animal Control Officer will be given a final opportunity to clarify 

any conflicts, ambiguities or inconsistencies created by or arising from the 

statements or evidence.  The Appeals Board may ask questions at any time 

during the appeal hearing and may request additional evidence from either 

party. 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
D

o
g

 A
p

p
ea

ls
 B

o
ar

d
  (

31
69

 :
 P

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
D

o
g

 A
p

p
ea

ls
 B

o
ar

d
)



7.           The final decision of the Appeals Board shall be in writing and shall 

be maintained as public record. 

b.           If the decision is in favor of the appellant, the Animal Control Department 

shall immediately cease efforts to implement any sanction(s) imposed by this 

Article. Any decision rendered by the Appeals Board applies only to the violation(s) 

appealed and the specific dog(s) in question and does not prevent the Animal 

Control Department from enforcing a subsequent violation of the same provision or 

any other provision of this ordinance. 

c.            If the Appeals Board upholds or affirms the declaration of the Animal 

Control Officer or his/her designee, the owner is responsible for all applicable fees 

and civil penalties. 

d.           The final decision of the Appeals Board hearing shall be sent to the owner of 

the dog within seven working days following the decision of the Appeals Board. 

e.            Any appeal from the final decision of the Appeals Board shall be taken to the 

Superior Court by filing a notice of appeal and petition for review within ten 

business days of receipt of the final decision of the Appeals Board. 

f.             If the owner of the dog does not file a written appeal of the Potentially 

Dangerous Dog Appeals Board ruling with the Superior Court within the time period 

required or if the owner of the dog does not comply with the confinement 

requirements as specified in this Section within 21 calendar days of the final 

decision of the Appeals Board or Superior Court, the dog becomes the property of 

the County and subject to seizure. 

 

 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
D

o
g

 A
p

p
ea

ls
 B

o
ar

d
  (

31
69

 :
 P

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
D

o
g

 A
p

p
ea

ls
 B

o
ar

d
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   October Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: October2021monthly report (PDF) 

 

Summary:  October Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

11.A

Packet Pg. 62



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ct
o

b
er

20
21

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

31
70

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ct
o

b
er

20
21

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

31
70

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ct
o

b
er

20
21

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

31
70

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ct
o

b
er

20
21

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

31
70

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ct
o

b
er

20
21

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

31
70

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ct
o

b
er

20
21

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

31
70

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ct
o

b
er

20
21

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

ep
o

rt
  (

31
70

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2021-12-02 Supporting Individual Freedom Over 

Personal Vaccination Status 

 

Attachments: Resolution in Support of Individual Freedom Over 

Personal Vacciniation 

Status (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

The Board of Commissioners will consider Resolution 2021-12-02 in support of individual 

freedom over personal vaccination status.   

11.B

Packet Pg. 70



 
 

Resolution 2021-12-02 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF INDIVIDUAL FREEDOM OVER 

PERSONAL VACCINATION STATUS 

 

 

WHEREAS, the freedom to make personal health choices is one of the most fundamental human rights 

protected under the Bill of Rights of the United States Constitution; and 

 

WHEREAS, informed consent is the bedrock of ethical practice in medicine, consisting of three essential 

elements: access to complete information, patient comprehension, and voluntariness; and 

 

WHEREAS, an alarming number of private and government entities across the United States and around 

the world are mandating COVID-19 vaccination, coupled with punitive restrictions on freedom, 

commerce, employment and medical care for non-compliance; and 

 

WHEREAS, there are various reasons why Americans choose not to be vaccinated, including, but not 

limited to established medical conditions, previous infection and recovery, preference for therapeutics; 

robust immune systems; prevention of potential adverse events; religious beliefs; intolerance to vaccine 

ingredients; previous anaphylactic and other reactions; and 

 

WHEREAS, during the 2021 legislative session House Bill 572, "No Vaccine Mandate by EO, Rule, or 

Agency" passed the house; and 

 

WHEREAS, during the 2021 legislative session House Bill 686, "An Act Prohibiting State and Local 

Government Retribution Regarding Refusal of Vaccines" is currently in committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 9, 2021, despite his promise to the contrary, President Biden enacted a 

sweeping order mandating vaccinations and/or testing requirements for businesses with over 100 employees; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, we firmly oppose President Biden's over reach of the vaccine mandate. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Camden County Board of Commissioners upholds the United States 

Constitution and fully supports the individual freedom to choose whether to be vaccinated or 

unvaccinated. We  recognize  the  historical  efficacy  of  proven  vaccines  in  public health, but reject 

policies of mandatory vaccination, regardless of FDA approval and reject proposals for statewide, 

nationwide, or global "vaccine passports," "health passes" or similar policies. We thank and support 

North Carolina legislators, local government officials and other elected officials for their continued efforts 

to ensure that the individual freedom to be vaccinated or unvaccinated without penalty or discrimination 

is fully protected. 

 

Adopted this, the 6th day of December 2021. 

        ATTEST: 

  

              

Chairman       Karen M. Davis 
Camden County Board of Commissioners   Clerk to the Board

 

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 in
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
In

d
iv

id
u

al
 F

re
ed

o
m

 O
ve

r 
P

er
so

n
al

 V
ac

ci
n

ia
ti

o
n

 S
ta

tu
s 

 (
31

62
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

02
1-

12
-0

2 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 11.C 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Agreement to Amend Restrictive Covenants 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

The Board of Commissioners will consider an agreement to amend Restrictive Covenants of 

Camden Business Park. 

11.C

Packet Pg. 72



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 12.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   South Camden Fire Commission 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is requested that George Tarkington be reappointed to the South Camden Fire Commission 

for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

12.A

Packet Pg. 73



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 12.B 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Advisory Board Commissioner Appointments 

 

Attachments: AdvisoryBoards_Commissioner Appointments

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

The attached list indicates Advisory Boards that require a Commissioner appointment.  Currently 

there are no vacancies. 

Recommendation: 

Review and amend current appointments as needed. 

12.B

Packet Pg. 74



Advisory Boards w/ Required Commissioner Appointments 

 

 

ADVISORY BOARD 

 

 

CURRENT 

APPOINTMENT 

 

MEETING 

SCHEDULE 

 

911 Central Communications 

 

Ross Munro 

 

As needed 

 

Albemarle Commission Board of Delegates 

 

Clayton Riggs / Tiffney 

White (alternate) 

 

Monthly 

 

Albemarle District Jail 

 

Clayton Riggs 

 

Monthly 

 

Albemarle Regional Health Board 

 

Tom White 

 

Quarterly 

 

Albemarle Rural Conservation & Dev. Council 

 

Tiffney White 

 

Bimonthly 

 

Albemarle Rural Planning Organization 

 
Tom White / Randy 

Krainiak (Alternate) 

 

 

Quarterly 

 

Camden Economic Development Commission 

 

Randy Krainiak 

 

Bimonthly 

 

Chamber of Commerce (Elizabeth City) 

 

Randy Krainiak 

 

Monthly 

 

Dismal Swamp Park Advisory Committee 

 

Ross Munro 

 

Quarterly 

 

Home & Community Block Grant 

 

Randy Krainiak 

 

Annually 

 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

 

Tom White 

 

Bimonthly 

 

Library Board of Trustees 

 

Clayton Riggs 

 

Quarterly 

 

Northeastern Workforce Dev. Consortium 

 

Clayton Riggs 

 

Quarterly 

 

Northern Regional Advisory Board – Trillium 

 

Clayton Riggs 

 

Quarterly 

 

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

 

Tiffney White 

 

Bimonthly 

 

Pasquotank-Camden EMS Board (2 reps) 

 
1.Tom White  

2.Tiffney White 

 

Quarterly 

 

Public Safety Organization 

 

Ross Munro 

 

Monthly 

 

Senior Advisory Board 

 

Ross Munro 

 

Bimonthly 

 

Social Services Board 

 

Randy Krainiak 

 

Monthly 

 

SPCA Advisory Board 

 

Randy Krainiak 

 

Monthly 

 

Tourism Development Authority 

 

Tom White 

 

Quarterly 

 

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
vi

so
ry

B
o

ar
d

s_
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
ts

  (
31

57
 :

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 B

o
ar

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
ts

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - November 1, 2021 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_110121 (DOCX) 

 

13.A

Packet Pg. 76



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

6:00 PM – Closed Session 

7:00 PM – Regular Meeting 

November 1, 2021 

Historic Courtroom - Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on November 1, 2021 in the Historic 

Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 6:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice-Chairman Ross Munro, 

Commissioners Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak and Tiffney White.       

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel and economic development. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to recess out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Chairman Tom White recessed the Board and reconvened the Regular Meeting at 7:00 PM.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Boyce Porter gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Certification Recognition – Ken Bowman 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman recognized Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Director Sarah Hill for completing the 

three-year program of the Southeast Tourism Society Marketing College and earning certification as a Travel 

Marketing Professional. 

 

B. Camden Heritage Festival Sponsor and Volunteer Recognition 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman recognized and awarded plaques to Commissioner Randy Krainiak, Mrs. Brenda 

Bowman, Welcome Center Director Sarah Hill and Parks & Recreation Director Tim White for their outstanding 

support for the First Camden Heritage Festival.   

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



Commissioner Randy Krainiak, Mrs. Brenda Bowman and Welcome Center Director Sarah Hill recognized and 

awarded Certificates of Appreciation to the Camden Heritage Festival sponsors and volunteers.   

 

On behalf of the Board of Commissioners, Chairman Tom White expressed appreciation to all of the festival 

volunteers. 

 

ITEM 4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

None. 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman Tom White recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer 

District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

 
 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 
 

 
 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 
 

 
 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 
 

Motion to approve the monthly reports as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Adjourn 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Chairman Tom White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 5.  PUBLIC HEARING          

 

A. New High School Construction Financing 

 

Motion to go into Public Hearing to receive public input pertaining to the construction of the new High 

School as required by the USDA to move forward with financing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

The Board of Commissioners received public input pertaining to the construction of the new High School as 

required by the USDA to move forward with financing.  No additional Board action was required. 

 

Public Comments 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



Millicent Harrington of NC Highway 343 North questioned what the County’s plan would be if the bids for the new 

high school came in over budget and if there would be an increase in the loan request.  Mrs. Harrington referenced 

an increase in the projected cost of the new library.   

 

County Manager Ken Bowman responded that some of the questions presented would be questions to be asked of 

the school board.  Any change in plans would be the responsibility of the school board.     

 

Mrs. Harrington questioned how the project would be scaled back and Mr. Bowman explained that it would have to 

be discussed between the two boards.  In regard to the tax increase Mrs. Harrington questioned what would happen 

to the tax monies received by the county if the loan were to not be secured.   She also questioned where the 3-cents 

for operating costs are currently going if there is not yet any additional operating costs.  Mr. Bowman explained that 

we are beyond that because of the referendum being passed by the majority of voters.  Mrs. Harrington also 

expressed concern of students currently being housed in classroom trailers due to space issues.  Mr. Bowman again 

explained that these are issues to be directed toward the school board.   

 

A.C. Wesley of Neck Road expressed the importance that the Board of Commissioners and Board of Education 

work together.  Mr. Wesley stated that economically this may hurt the county.  As much as he supports education as 

a former educator, it is important to work towards a common-sense solution.  The 13-cent tax increase will hurt 

some of the citizens of the county who are on fixed incomes.  He advised that if in doubt, drop back.  He doesn’t 

believe that people in the county would ‘hold a grudge’.   

 

Motion to come out of Public Hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 6.  OLD BUSINESS          

 

A. NCDOT Abandonment Petition – Ken Bowman 

 

At the October 4, 2021 meeting of the Board of Commissioners, the Board received information and heard from Mr. 

Bob McDaniels concerning a request to abandon the portion of Shipyard Road adjacent to his property.  The Board 

voted to place this matter on the November 1st agenda for consideration. 

 

Motion to deny the NCDOT abandonment petition of the requested portion of Shipyard Road. 

 

Vice-Chairman Ross Munro questioned Commissioner Tiffney White’s reason for her motion to deny the 

abandonment request. 

 

Commissioner Tiffney White explained that the road is currently being maintained by the North Carolina 

Department of Transportation and, in addition, there is a utility line that runs under that portion of the road. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 7.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax reports as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

B. Vicious/Dangerous Dog Appeals Board – Sheriff Kevin Jones 

 

Sheriff Kevin Jones addressed the Board in regard to establishing a Vicious or Dangerous Dog Panel / Appeals 

Board per General Statute 67-4.1 Subsection C. 

 

After a brief discussion it was decided by consensus to move this item to the December 6th agenda for consideration. 

 

 

ITEM 8.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

• Appointment of James Midgett 

• Appointment of Molly Brown 

• Appointment of Stephanie McGirl 

 

B. Planning Board 

• Appointment of Marshall “Lee” Powell III (South Mills Township) 

• Appointment of Dave Parks (Courthouse Township) 

 

Motion to approve the Board Appointments as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 9.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – October 4, 2021 (incorporated by reference) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 

B. Budget Amendment 

 
 

 

C. Tax Collection Report 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 
 

E. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 

F. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

G. Set Public Hearing for December 6, 2021 – Zoning Map Amendment  

 

H. Set Public Hearing for December 6, 2021 – Zoning Text Amendment to UDO 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 10.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

• Volunteers needed to serve on various boards and committees.  Check the county website for an 

application. 

• Veteran’s Day Ceremony – November 10th, 11:00 AM on the Courthouse lawn.  County offices are closed 

on November 11th. 

• Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – December 6, 2021 at 8:30 AM.   

• Happy Thanksgiving! 

 

ITEM 11.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Vice-Chairman Ross Munro – A question concerning the 85% capacity rule was raised during the recent meeting in 

regard to the South Mills Water Association.  The Planning Department has been requested to look into this further 

and report their findings. 

 

Chairman Tom White announced that he has decided not to seek reelection in 2022.   

 

ITEM 12.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

Provided for information only: 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 

ITEM 13.  OTHER MATTERS          

 

Motion to go back into Closed Session to discuss personnel and economic development. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

The Board reviewed and discussed the results of the County Manager’s annual performance evaluation.   

 

Based on the results of his performance evaluation, motion to present the County Manager a bonus in the 

amount of $15,000 effective January 1, 2022.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 14.  ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Tom White adjourned the meeting at 8:45 PM. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

            

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
01

21
  (

31
53

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

, 2
02

1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.B 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

13.B

Packet Pg. 90



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
73

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
73

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
73

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
73

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
73

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
73

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.C 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

13.C

Packet Pg. 97



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
72

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
72

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
72

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
72

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
72

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

31
72

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.D 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: DMV MONTHLY REPORT OCT, 2021 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report January, 22 Renewals Due 2/15/22 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

13.D

Packet Pg. 104



13.D.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

M
V

 M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 O

C
T

, 2
02

1 
 (

31
55

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.E 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 OCTOBER, 21

 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 October, 2021 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

13.E

Packet Pg. 106



13.E.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

E
H

IC
L

E
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

 O
C

T
O

B
E

R
, 2

1 
 (

31
56

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.F 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

13.F

Packet Pg. 108



13.F.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
65

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.G 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: REFUNDS OVER $100.00 NOVEMBER 21 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 November, 2021 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

13.G

Packet Pg. 110



13.G.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

 N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 2
1 

 (
31

71
 :

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.H 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

13.H

Packet Pg. 112



13.H.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
31

68
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 13.I 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Charles Jones, 

 Public Works 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Recycling & Disposal Contract Renewal 

 

Attachments: Camden Co 2029 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

The Scrap Tire Recycling and Disposal Contract is scheduled to expire in January 2022. The current 

contract is between Camden County and Central Carolina Holdings, LLC, 1616 Mckoy Town Road 

Cameron, NC 28326. The County chooses to recycle its scrap tires when possible and has determined that 

this service can best be provided through a service contract with a qualified firm. Central Carolina 

Holdings, LLC, is qualified to provide collection, transportation recycling and disposal of tires and other 

scrap rubber and has the necessary equipment, personnel, facilities, expertise, financial resources and 

management skills to provide a high level of service. This Contract shall be in full force and effect for a 

period of five (5) years from the date of execution, with a 2 year annual renewal terms unless terminated 

earlier per Section 8 (b) unless either party notifies the other party in writing 30 days prior to the 

expiration of the term of his desire to terminate this contract, in which case the term shall end as 

scheduled. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

13.I

Packet Pg. 114



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 

 

 
 RECYCLING & DISPOSAL CONTRACT 

 
 This Scrap Tire Recycling and Disposal Contract (“Contract”) made and entered 
on this 1st. day of January 2022 (“Anniversary Date”), by and between Camden County a 
political subdivision of the State of North Carolina, hereafter referred to as “County” and 
Central Carolina Holdings, LLC, 1616 Mckoy Town Road Cameron, NC 28326 herein 
after referred to as the “Contractor”. 
 
 WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, the County chooses to recycle its scrap tires when possible and has 
determined that this service can best be provided through a service contract with a 
qualified firm: and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor is qualified to provide collection, transportation 
recycling and disposal of tires and other scrap rubber and has the necessary equipment, 
personnel, facilities, expertise, financial resources and management skills to provide a 
high level of service. 
 
1) Scrap Tire Volume Generated 
 It is unknown how many scrap tires that the County receives at its landfill 
annually.  However, the Contractor understands that the County does not control the 
scrap tire waste stream and that there is no guaranteed volume that will be received 
during the term of this Contract. 
 
2) Recycling and Disposal Services 
  
          a)  Contractor Responsibilities 
 
 The Contractor agrees to stage open trailer(s) at the County’s designated sites and 
to transport, process, recycle or dispose of all scrap tires loaded in said trailer.  
Furthermore, the Contractor shall be responsible for hauling, processing, recycling and/or 
disposing of all scrap tires in accordance with all applicable state, federal, and local 
environmental and safety laws, regulations, permits, ordinances, and standards. 
 
 b) County Responsibilities 
 
 The County shall made available ample space in a manner acceptable to 
Contractor to provide for efficient handling of containers and materials contained therein. 
The county shall provide all loading of tires prior to contractor switching out full trailers. 
 
 
 
 

13.I.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 2

02
9 

 (
31

61
 :

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
 &

 D
is

p
o

sa
l C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

en
ew

al
)



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 

 

3) Term 
  
            This Contract shall be in full force and effect for a period of five (5) years from 
the date of execution, with a 2 year annual renewal terms unless terminated earlier per 
Section 8 (b) unless either party notifies the other party in writing 30 days prior to the 
expiration of the term of his desire to terminate this contract, in which case the term shall 
end as scheduled. 
 
4) Invoices 
  
The Contractor shall invoice the County for scrap tires collected and transported since the 
previous invoice.  Each invoice shall be according to the fees per Section 6.  Each invoice 
shall include a dated listing of the loads collected and transported.   
 
5)  Collection Disposal Fees 
 
The County shall pay Contractor, for the work described in Section 2, including 
processing and transportation of all passenger and truck tires, the sum of $95.00 per ton 
for the initial year starting on Jan 1st 2022, expiring on June 30, 2022. A ten (10) ton 
minimum per trailer will apply a well as a $25.00 Environmental Fee will be charged for 
each trailer pulled from the county collection site. A Consumer Price Index adjustment 
will be calculated in March of each year and Contractor will notify the county of any 
increase that will be applied to the contract price each year starting on the July 1, 2023. 
Super Single Truck tires are charged at the same rate of $95.00 per ton plus an additional 
$0.05 per pound with no minimum tonnage. OTR tires are charged at the same rate of 
$95.00 per ton plus an additional $0.20 per pound with no minimum tonnage. There will 
be a $50.00 charge for all double drop and hooks. Because fuel consumption constitutes a 
major part of the fee structure, there will be a freight charge of $750.00 per load in 
addition to the fuel Sur Charge. Effective July 1, 2022 there will be a price adjustment to 
the sum of $105.00 per ton for disposal and freight charge will be adjusted to $1547.00 
per load. All other fees will remain as listed. 
  
The calculation of this charge is on a base price of diesel being $2.50 to $2.74 per gallon.  
Total round-trip miles of 442 for this transaction are multiplied times the “price 
adjustment per mile” for the average fuel cost at the time of service. Fuel Sur-charge with 
formula shown in next paragraph. 
 
 
                              
 
 
                                 
 
 
 

13.I.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 2

02
9 

 (
31

61
 :

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
 &

 D
is

p
o

sa
l C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

en
ew

al
)



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 

 

Price per Gallon          Price Adjustment per mile 
    

$2.50 - $2.74              +0.30 
$2.75 - $2.99   +0.35 
$3.00 - $3.24   +0.40 
$3.25 - $3.49               +0.45 

       $3.50 - $3.74                           +0.50 
$3.75 - $3.99                           +0.55 
$4.00 - $4.24                           +0.60 
$4.25 - $4.49                           +0.65 
$4.50 - $4.74                           +0.70 
$4.75 - $4.99                           +0.75 
$5.00 - $5.24                           +0.80 

                          
Formula follows with the price of fuel 

 
In the event of a discrepancy between Contractor and County records, such invoice shall 
be paid less the amount of the discrepancy.  A notice of discrepancy with supporting 
documentation, shall be promptly sent to Contractor and the two parties shall  
reconcile records and invoices at the earliest possible date.  Such reconciliation shall be 
reflected on the next invoice from Contractor. 
 
6) Taxes, etc. clause 
 Should the local, state, or federal government impose a franchise fee or tax, 
Contractor will pass this fee on to the county, or Contractor and County will agree to 
cancel the contract.  Should such termination or recession occur before performance of 
the activity herein provided is begun, all parties hereto shall be released from the 
provisions hereof without liability or obligation.  Should such termination or recession 
occur after such performance is begun, the liability and obligations of the parties shall be 
limited to settlement of all proper claims based upon performance prior to termination or 
recession of this contract.  In no case shall the Company be liable or responsible for any 
other cost of obtaining, preparing, maintaining, or operating the facilities for deposit of 
said tires nor shall Company be liable or responsible for any of the cost of obtaining, 
preparing, maintaining or operating the location for assembly, collection, and removal of 
said tires. 
  
7)  Termination 
 This Contract may be terminated according to either of the following provisions: 

 
a) Default:  If either party hereto deems the other party hereto to be in default of 

any provision hereof, the claiming party shall provide notice in writing to the defaulting 
party of said default.  If said defaulting party fails to correct the default within twenty 
(20) working days from the date of notice, the other party may terminate this Contract 
immediately.  In case of such termination the party terminating this contract shall 
forthwith give the other party written notice of such termination. 

13.I.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 2

02
9 

 (
31

61
 :

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
 &

 D
is

p
o

sa
l C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

en
ew

al
)



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 

 

            b) Mutual Agreement:  This Contract may be terminated by mutual agreement of 
the parties hereto, at any time. 
 
8) Force Majeure 
 a) Suspension of Performance:  The performance of its duties and obligations 
hereunder by either party shall be suspended to the extent that such performance, in 
whole or in part, shall be rendered impracticable by Force Majeure. 
 
 b) Definition:  Force Majeure - For purposes herein, Force Majeure shall be 
termed as any event or occurrence of any nature or kind in respect to the duties herein 
that is beyond the control of and occurs without the negligence of the party invoking the 
same,  including without limitation:  acts of God or of a public enemy, acts of 
government or governmental authority in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, 
wars, riots, fires, floods, explosions, epidemics, boycotts, excessive fuel prices, 
blackouts, strikes, labor disputes, equipment breakdowns, and any transportation problem 
directly affecting or inhibiting pickups. 
 
 c) Notice:  In the event that either party hereto determines that a Force majeure 
has occurred, or its is likely to occur, said party shall promptly furnish to the other party 
notice in writing of such Force Majeure, setting forth the nature of such problem, the  
anticipated effect thereof on said party’s performance hereunder and when normal 
performance may be expected.  In the event of excessive fuel prices of over the road 
diesel, Contractor and County will negotiate satisfactory terms for both parties involved. 
 

d) No Unreasonable Delay:  Any party hereto whose performance hereunder is 
delayed or prevented by a factor of Force Majeure, and said party subsequently invokes 
Force Majeure, shall take all reasonable steps to resume, with the least possible delay, 
compliance with its obligations hereunder, provided that said party shall not be required 
to settle any strike or labor dispute on terms not acceptable to it. 
 
9) Representations 
 

9.1) The Contractor represents, warrants and covenants to County that: 
 
 a) It is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of the State of North Carolina and is duly and validly qualified to conduct business 
and is in good standing in all jurisdictions in which such qualification is necessary. 
 
 b) The execution, delivery and performance of this Contract have been duly and 
validly authorized by all corporate action required to be taken and will not result in a 
breach of, constitute a Default under, or violate the terms of Contractor’s organizational 
agreement, or any rule, regulation, judgment, decree, order, or agreement to which 
Contractor is a parry or by which it may be bound. 
 

c) Contractor shall comply with all environmental and other applicable 

13.I.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 2

02
9 

 (
31

61
 :

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
 &

 D
is

p
o

sa
l C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

en
ew

al
)



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 

 

governmental permits, guidelines and actions during the term hereof, and has paid and  
will pay all valid charges and assessments in connection therewith.  Contractor hereby 
indemnifies County against any punitive or other action resulting from or associated with 
Contractor’s failure to do so. 
 
9.2) County represents, warrants and covenants to Contractor that: 
 a) The execution, delivery and performance of this Contract by County have been 
duly and validly authorized by all corporate action required to be taken and will not result 
in a breach of, constitute a Default under, or violate the terms of decree, order, contract or 
agreement to which County is a party or by which it may be bound.  Concurrently 
herewith, County tenders unto Contractor a certified copy of the resolution of its Board of 
Commissioners authorizing execution and delivery of this Contract. 
 
10) Insurance 
 Contractor does hereby attest that it has general liability insurance coverage 
(which covers all its operations including but not limited to motor vehicle transportation)  
in the minimum amount of one million ($1,000,000.00) dollars.  A “Certificate of 
Insurance” affirming said coverage is attached hereto as an integral part of this Contract.  
County shall be listed as an additional insured under said Certificate of Insurance and a 
copy of said endorsement shall be provided to County within ten (10) days signing of 
Contract.  Contractor shall at all times during the existence of this contract maintain 
liability insurance coverage in the amount not less than one million ($1,000,000.00) 
dollars. 
 
11) Hold Harmless 

The Contractor does hereby indemnify and hold the County free and harmless 
from liability on account of injury or damage to persons or property which may result 
from the negligent conduct or operations arising out of the business of collection, 
removal and transportation of tires in accordance with the terms of this contract; and, in 
the event that any suit or proceeding is brought against the County at law or in equity, 
either independently or jointly with the Contractor, or either of them, on account of such 
negligent acts, the Contractor will defend the County in any such suit or proceeding at the  
cost of the Contractor, and in the event of a final judgment of decree being brought 
against either of them, the Contractor will pay such judgment or comply with such decree 
with all costs and expenses of whatsoever nature and hold the County harmless 
therefrom. 
 
12) Dispute 
 Any matter that arises hereunder that cannot be settled in negotiations between the 
parties hereto shall be handled according to the laws, legal processes and courts of the 
State of North Carolina.  Any final decision there from shall be valid and binding upon 
the parties hereto and enforceable at law.  Venue for any action arising out of this 
contract shall be the general court of justice, County of Camden, NC 
 
 

13.I.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 2

02
9 

 (
31

61
 :

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
 &

 D
is

p
o

sa
l C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

en
ew

al
)



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 

 

13) Miscellaneous 
 13.1) Contractor agrees to be an equal opportunity employer and not discriminate 
based on race, religion, or sex. 
 
 13.2) This Contract may be changed only by agreement in writing and signed by 
both parties hereto. 
  
 13.3) This Contract embodies the entire contract between the parties and 
supersedes any prior agreements and understanding, oral and/or written. 
 
 13.4) This Contract may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original. 
 
 13.5) This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. 
 
 13.6) The sections and heading in the Contract are for reference purposes only 
and shall not affect in any way the meaning of this Contract or any part herein. 
   

13.7) In the event that any provision of this Contract shall be determined to be 
invalid, this Contract thereupon shall be deemed to have been amended to eliminate such 
provisions so the remaining provisions of this Contract shall be valid and binding. 
 

13.8) All notices, and other formal communications hereunder shall be made in 
writing and given or delivered by certified United States mail to the principal and at the 
address designated below.  Acceptance thereof shall be deemed to constitute receipt. 
 
Contractor      COUNTY 
Central Carolina Holdings, LLC   Camden County 
1616 Mckoy Town Road    P. O. Box 190, Hwy158 East,   
Cameron, North Carolina 28326   Camden, NC 27921 
    
 13.9) Any waiver made hereto shall be deemed to be limited in application to the 
matters explicitly referred to therein and shall neither be construed as, nor entitle the 
other party to a waiver by said party of any similar matter. 
      

13.10) This Contract shall be binding upon and insure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, but neither this Contract nor 
any of the rights, interests, or obligations hereunder shall be assigned by either party 
hereto without the prior written consent of the other party hereto, which consent shall not 
be unreasonable withheld or delayed. 
 
 
 
 
 

13.I.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 2

02
9 

 (
31

61
 :

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
 &

 D
is

p
o

sa
l C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

en
ew

al
)



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their respective hands and seals as 
of the date first above written. 
 
 
 
 
                                                     CAMDEN COUNTY 
 
 
 
                BY_______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
      CENTRAL CAROLOINA HOLDING, LLC  
 
 
 
 
 
      BY_________________________________ 
             
 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

13.I.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
 2

02
9 

 (
31

61
 :

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
 &

 D
is

p
o

sa
l C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

en
ew

al
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 13.J 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   JCPC Contractor Agreement 

 

Attachments: ICA Teen Court Teacher Lage 2021 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

JCPC Coordinator Marcia Berry requests approval of the attached Independent Contractor 

Agreement for Teen Court Advisor.  

13.J

Packet Pg. 122



1 

Independent Contractor Agreement 

This Agreement entered into this _______ day of ________________, 

20___, by and between the Board of County Commissioners of Camden 
County (“Camden County""), and _____________________

(“Contractor”). 

In consideration of their mutual promises made herein, and for other 

good and valuable consideration, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Work.

(a) Camden County engages the Contractor to furnish the work described
in the Schedule attached to this Agreement at the times specified in the 

Schedule, and the Contractor agrees to furnish the work at the times 
specified in the Schedule. 

(b) Contractor acknowledges that by prior knowledge and examination, 
Contractor understands the nature of the work, the environment, and the 
difficulties that may be incident to performing the Services. 

(c ) Contractor warrants that all Services under this Agreement shall be 
performed and completed in a safe, good and skillful manner by fully 
trained, skilled, competent and experienced personnel utilizing adequate 
equipment in good working order at all times. 

(d) Contractor shall not employ in any work for Camden County any 
employee who is a minor or whose employment violates any labor, 
employment or other applicable laws. 

2. Price and Payment.

Camden County agrees to pay the Contractor in accordance with the price 

and payment terms set forth in the Schedule attached to this Agreement, 

and the Contractor agrees to accept such amounts as full payment for its 
work and to sign such waivers of lien, affidavits and receipts as Camden 
County shall request in order to acknowledge payment. 

3. Independent Contractor Relationship.

 The Contractor is and at all times shall conduct itself as an independent 

contractor, and Contractor is not and shall not be considered or hold itself 
out or act as an employee, servant, agent, partner, or party in a joint 

venture with Camden County. Camden County shall determine the work to be 
done by the Contractor, but the Contractor shall determine the means by 

which to accomplish the work specified by Camden County. Camden County is 

13.J.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IC

A
 T

ee
n

 C
o

u
rt

 T
ea

ch
er

 L
ag

e 
20

21
  (

31
67

 :
 J

C
P

C
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



not responsible for withholding, and shall not withhold, FICA or taxes of any 

kind from any, payments that it owes the Contractor. Neither the Contractor 
nor its employees shall be entitled to receive any benefits which employees 

of Camden County are entitled to receive and shall not be entitled to workers' 

compensation, unemployment compensation, medical insurance, life 

insurance, paid vacations, paid holidays, pension, profit sharing, or Social 
Security on account of their work for Camden County. 

4. Term.

This Agreement is effective as of the date signed by both parties and shall 

continue in effect for a period of time specified to complete the project that 

is the subject of this Agreement and not to exceed the next ensuing June 

30th, or until cancelled by either party upon not less than thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other party. 

5. Miscellaneous.

(a) If any terms of this Agreement shall be declared invalid, illegal or

unenforceable for any reason or in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof and this 

Agreement shall be construed as if such provision had never been contained 

herein. 

(b) This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties

and supersedes any prior agreement between the parties. 

(c) This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument signed

by both parties’ contracting authority. 

13.J.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IC

A
 T

ee
n

 C
o

u
rt

 T
ea

ch
er

 L
ag

e 
20

21
  (

31
67

 :
 J

C
P

C
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 

the date first written above. 

Board of County Commissioners of Contractor 

Camden County 

By: By: ____ 
Chairman 

Title: 

13.J.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IC

A
 T

ee
n

 C
o

u
rt

 T
ea

ch
er

 L
ag

e 
20

21
  (

31
67

 :
 J

C
P

C
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



SCHEDULE TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

A. SERVICES AND SCOPE OF WORK:

1. Description of Services, Materials and Other Items Supplied by

Contractor:

2. Geographic Areas:

Camden County, North Carolina

B. PRICE OR RATES AND PAYMENT TERMS FOR SERVICES:

C. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS:

13.J.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 IC

A
 T

ee
n

 C
o

u
rt

 T
ea

ch
er

 L
ag

e 
20

21
  (

31
67

 :
 J

C
P

C
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Repoirts & Minutes from Other Agencies  

 

Item Number: 16.A 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

16.A

Packet Pg. 127



16.A.A

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

50
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



16.A.A

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

50
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Repoirts & Minutes from Other Agencies  

 

Item Number: 16.B 

Meeting Date:   December 06, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 10/2021 

 

Attachments: 21-10 (DOCX) 

 

16.B

Packet Pg. 130



Camden County Public Library 

October 2021 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 1,025 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 2,963 

Computer/ Wireless Use 215/224 

Questions Answered 329 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 12/216 

Adult Programs/Attendance 3/20 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 4/36 

Days/Hours Open 24/184 

# Items in Collection 20,126 

Library Card Holders 2,842 

Curbside Pickups 2 

 

Comparison by Year 

2019-2021 

  
           

 

 

 

2335

0

1025

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019 OCT 2020 OCT 2021 OCT

Attendance

3932

1092

2963

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

2019 OCT 2020 OCT 2021 OCT

Circulation

16.B.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

1-
10

  (
31

63
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Joe Brock - Harmony Baptist Church

	I. Consideration of the Agenda
	II. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	III. Election of Chairman to the Board - John Morrison
	IV. Election of Vice Chairman to the Board
	V. Bond Approval
	A. 3164 : Approval of Bonds
	Printout: 3164 : Approval of Bonds
	a. Bonds_120621


	VI. 2022 Board of Commissioners Meeting Calendar
	A. 3152 : 2022 Regular Meeting Calendar
	Printout: 3152 : 2022 Regular Meeting Calendar
	a. 2022 Regular Meeting Schedule


	VII. 2022 State Holiday Schedule
	A. 3151 : 2022 State Holiday Schedule
	Printout: 3151 : 2022 State Holiday Schedule
	a. 2022-Holiday-Schedule


	VIII. Public Comments
	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	IX. Public Hearings
	A. 3159 : Sandy Hook Rezoning
	Printout: 3159 : Sandy Hook Rezoning
	a. 1AgendaSummary_SandyHookRezoning2021December06
	b. 2StaffReportSandyHookRezoningDecember6_2021
	c. 3Sandy Hook application
	d. 4ComparisionVCtoNR
	e. 5Neighborhood Meeting Summary
	f. Ordinance for Ricky Edwards Rezoning Deember6_2021
	g. ResolutionOrdinanceSandyHookRezoning

	B. 3160 : UDO Text Amendment
	Printout: 3160 : UDO Text Amendment
	a. 2021December6_AgendaSummary_FeeTextAmendment
	b. NCGS 162A-213
	c. Updated2021-12-02 Ordinance for Time of Collection of Utility Fees


	X. Old Business
	A. 3169 : Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board
	Printout: 3169 : Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board
	a. Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board


	XI. New Business
	A. 3170 : Tax Report
	Printout: 3170 : Tax Report
	a. October2021monthly report

	B. 3162 : Resolution 2021-12-02 Supporting Individual Freedom Over Personal Vaccination Status
	Printout: 3162 : Resolution 2021-12-02 Supporting Individual Freedom Over Personal Vaccination Status
	a. Resolution in Support of Individual Freedom Over Personal Vacciniation Status

	C. 3158 : Agreement to Amend Restrictive Covenants (Camden Business Park) - John Morrison
	Printout: 3158 : Agreement to Amend Restrictive Covenants (Camden Business Park) - John Morrison


	XII. Board Appointments
	A. 3166 : South Camden Fire Commission
	Printout: 3166 : South Camden Fire Commission

	B. 3157 : Advisory Board Commissioner Appointments
	Printout: 3157 : Advisory Board Commissioner Appointments
	a. AdvisoryBoards_Commissioner Appointments


	XIII. Consent Agenda
	A. 3153 : BOC Meeting Minutes - November 1, 2021
	Printout: 3153 : BOC Meeting Minutes - November 1, 2021
	a. bocminutes_110121

	B. 3173 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 3173 : Budget Amendments
	a. Budget Amendments

	C. 3172 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 3172 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	D. 3155 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 3155 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. DMV MONTHLY REPORT OCT, 2021

	E. 3156 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 3156 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 OCTOBER, 21

	F. 3165 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 3165 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	G. 3171 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 3171 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. REFUNDS OVER $100.00 NOVEMBER 21

	H. 3168 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 3168 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	I. 3161 : Recycling & Disposal Contract Renewal
	Printout: 3161 : Recycling & Disposal Contract Renewal
	a. Camden Co 2029

	J. 3167 : JCPC Contractor Agreement
	Printout: 3167 : JCPC Contractor Agreement
	a. ICA Teen Court Teacher Lage 2021


	XIV. County Manager's Report
	XV. Commissioners' Reports
	XVI. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. 3150 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 3150 : Register of Deeds Report
	A. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 3163 : Library Report
	Printout: 3163 : Library Report
	a. 21-10


	XVII. Other Matters
	XVIII. Adjourn

	Appendix
	5.A · 3164 : Approval of Bonds
	5.A.a · Bonds_120621

	6.A · 3152 : 2022 Regular Meeting Calendar
	6.A.a · 2022 Regular Meeting Schedule

	7.A · 3151 : 2022 State Holiday Schedule
	7.A.a · 2022-Holiday-Schedule

	9.A · 3159 : Sandy Hook Rezoning
	9.A.a · 1AgendaSummary_SandyHookRezoning2021December06
	9.A.b · 2StaffReportSandyHookRezoningDecember6_2021
	9.A.c · 3Sandy Hook application
	9.A.d · 4ComparisionVCtoNR
	9.A.e · 5Neighborhood Meeting Summary
	9.A.f · Ordinance for Ricky Edwards Rezoning Deember6_2021
	9.A.g · ResolutionOrdinanceSandyHookRezoning

	9.B · 3160 : UDO Text Amendment
	9.B.a · 2021December6_AgendaSummary_FeeTextAmendment
	9.B.b · NCGS 162A-213
	9.B.c · Updated2021-12-02 Ordinance for Time of Collection of Utility Fees

	10.A · 3169 : Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board
	10.A.a · Potentially Dangerous Dog Appeals Board

	11.A · 3170 : Tax Report
	11.A.a · October2021monthly report

	11.B · 3162 : Resolution 2021-12-02 Supporting Individual Freedom Over Personal Vaccination Status
	11.B.a · Resolution in Support of Individual Freedom Over Personal Vacciniation Status

	11.C · 3158 : Agreement to Amend Restrictive Covenants (Camden Business Park) - John Morrison
	12.A · 3166 : South Camden Fire Commission
	12.B · 3157 : Advisory Board Commissioner Appointments
	12.B.a · AdvisoryBoards_Commissioner Appointments

	13.A · 3153 : BOC Meeting Minutes - November 1, 2021
	13.A.a · bocminutes_110121

	13.B · 3173 : Budget Amendments
	13.B.a · Budget Amendments

	13.C · 3172 : School Budget Amendments
	13.C.a · School Budget Amendments

	13.D · 3155 : DMV Monthly Report
	13.D.a · DMV MONTHLY REPORT OCT, 2021

	13.E · 3156 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	13.E.a · VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 OCTOBER, 21

	13.F · 3165 : Tax Collection Report
	13.F.a · Tax Collection Report

	13.G · 3171 : Refunds Over $100.00
	13.G.a · REFUNDS OVER $100.00 NOVEMBER 21

	13.H · 3168 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	13.H.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	13.I · 3161 : Recycling & Disposal Contract Renewal
	13.I.a · Camden Co 2029

	13.J · 3167 : JCPC Contractor Agreement
	13.J.a · ICA Teen Court Teacher Lage 2021

	16.A · 3150 : Register of Deeds Report
	16.A.A · Register of Deeds Report

	16.B · 3163 : Library Report
	16.B.a · 21-10



	Text Field0: 12th
	Text Field1: October
	Text Field2: 21
	Text Field3: Rick Lage
	Text Field4: Serve as advisor for teen court program. Recruit and train student volunteers. Oversee trials as they occur. Minimum of one meeting per month with student volunteers.
	Text Field5: 
	Text Field6: $500
	Text Field7: 


